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Highlights
· This boundary section is one of contrasts. The South Eastern boundary of Rylstone with Embsay parish begins in high, open moorland on Barden Moor, descends along Waterfall Gill, skirts the slopes of Nettlehole Wood and finally ends on the B6265 - Skipton to Grassington Road - at Sandy Beck bar in low-lying pastureland.
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View up Waterfall Gill and the Rylstone boundary with Nettlehole Wood on the right. 
· Waterfall Gill here also marks the old boundary between the Nortons of Rylstone's and Cliffords of Skipton Castle's lands. These were sworn enemies and often in dispute over land and deer rights. 

· Both were said to have built look-out towers either side of Waterfall Gill, although only the ruins of the Norton Tower survive. This is sited on a spur of open moorland, as the photos below depict, and it looks down on the Old Hall and church. Much of the tower is composed of deep-coursed stonework which is roughly dressed from squared rubble boulders of gritstone.

The Tower is now under the care of English Heritage which has recently undertaken some restoration work on the old Tower walls. There is some dispute about the purpose of the Tower, said to have been built by Richard Norton in about 1540. Was it really, or only, a watch tower or was it a summertime lodge for the Nortons, where they could shoot game, engage in archery or other leisure pursuits?
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Here is a project description of Norton Hill and what can be seen here:

'The track up to Norton Tower site is modern. Near the top of the slope it cuts through older features near the Tower. There seems to be possible double bank and ditch features there. The listing for the tower says it stands amidst extensive earthworks and is only part of an important archaeological site which includes prehistoric field clearance cairns and medieval rabbit warren pillow mounds.

It is clear that there are other long earthwork walls with double orthostats that run at odd angles to the tower and are of a different date. They appear earlier and perhaps prehistoric. Some walls run down into the wood. This style of walling may be medieval or prehistoric. Apart from these are cairns of clearance cobble. These remain prominent even where parts of the hill field have recently been improved. With clearance cairns present, the earthwork walls are likely to be field boundaries'. 

· After descending to the valley floor from Norton Tower Hill, and passing through a pasture, Rylstone's South Eastern boundary reaches a junction with both the old and new Rylstone to Skipton roads. The old road - now only a green track-way - is shown in yellow on the Google Earth screenshot at the start of this section. 
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Looking up the old road with old toll house from Sandy Beck Bar.
Painting by Harry Ready by courtesy of Kathleen Carlisle.
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The start of the old road today                More details of the old toll house 

· The new road - the Skipton to Cracoe Turnpike - was built in 1853, with a new Toll House at Sandy Beck Bar. The Griffiths family lived at the toll house for many years - long after it ceased to be used for tolls - and worked for the Standevans at Scale House. The toll house has been unoccupied since about 1950. The two photographs below show how it looked in the 1940s and today.
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The Skipton to Craco Turnpike and Turnpike House at Sandy Beck ( continued )

We believe that Sandy Beck Toll House has been unoccupied since around 1946,although Jack Wade of
Threaplands Farm remembers when he was a boy that an old lady occupied the house for several years
until around1950

POSTMEN ON HORSEBACK IN THE SNOW.

: < YRR . e I s b
A V8 Ford Pilot car belonging to Arthur Griffiths parked
outside Sandy Beck Toll House in the early 1940s

Editor’s Note. We also note having examined the admission and withdrawal register for Cracoe School that
on the 4th of June 1945, Geoffrey Willoughby Collier started attending Cracoe School. His previous school
had been Cross Gates School in Leeds. His address was given as Sandy Beck Bar. He left the school on the
Lst April 1946. Our thanks again to Mrs. Bronte Bedford-Payne, who confirmed in her account that

her father's sister Emily married Jack Peacock of Cracoe and they lived in Blackheath. One of their
Daughters- Phyllis (Pat) married a Bill Collier and had one son Geoffrey. Pat and her son spent some of the
war years with her widowed grandfather ( Owen Griffiths ) at Sandy Beck Toll House ,while Geoffrey went to
Cracoe School .

We now know that the Toll House was built around 1853 ,the same time as the road was re-aligned to
become the toll road. This date is confirmed in a number of books such as “ Old Yorkshire Dales” by Arthur
Raistrick first published in 1967.Talking about Rylstone, he refers to “the Cracoe to Skipton turnpike which
runs in a nearly straight line between Rylstone and its southern boundary, leaving the old road one field distant
to the east. Where the old and new road meet at the boundary, there is Sandy Beck Bar, the only tollhouse on
the road, so placed as to keep an eye on the traveller who might be disposed to slip by on the old road”. In her
book Wharfedale first published in 1938 Ella Pontefract refers to the fact that tolls doubled after sunset and
every effort would be made by carriers and farmers to avoid paying them, including the wily Jamie Ibbotson
of Threshfield who had a habit of presenting a high denomination note which the toll keeper could not
change! Ella Pontefract also mentions how boys used the old road from Grassington to Skipton to collect
coal. They drove small Galloway carts which could carry half a ton and the journey took them two hours each
way. Often as many as 20 to 30 carts would go on one day. A boy got 6d for the journey, and 4d for his dinner
at Skipton, and was given his tea when he got back. The usual fare was a meat and potato — mostly potato —pie
for twopence, a plate of milk pudding for a penny, and a cup of tea for a penny.

Our research has shown that the plans for the intended turn-

) Toll House Building Costs pike road from Skipton to Cracoe were prepared by Sur-
April 4th. To Stoncrason oniaccount £15. 0s 0d veyor, James Elwood Terry in 1851. We were fortunate to
ap r¥l 18th - E1> 0s 0d locate the plans, and following a visit to the West Yorkshire
Al 30w ol Archive Service at Wakefield we can confirm the follow-
May 14th i £20 0s 0d ;

May 28th i £10 0s 0d |M&- Nl o

TJune 11th “ £10 0s 0d |The plans show no indication of the positioning of Sandy
July 4th « £6 0s 0d |Beck Toll House, although we did discover documentary
Shuttleworth- Plasterer £6 7s 1d [evidence of the actual cost of the building detailed in the
Thornton -Slate £5 11s 1'%2d |accounts record book as shown left

William Domaine- Joiner £21 0s 0d | The total cost of the building we found to be surprisingly
Sundries 4s 6d |high for the time, considering that Hetton Chapel was built 6
John Wood- mason £4 6s 6%d |yvears later for around £159. The records confirmed that tolls
Grand Total £128 10s 1d |oommenced on 26th of August 1853, and by December of

1853 toll income had reached £100. 8s 4d . continued across
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